
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 4 - Ty Hywel 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
17 December 2012  

 

Meeting time: 
14:30 

 

For further information please contact:  

Gareth Williams 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8008/8019 
CLA.Committee@wales.gov.uk  

Ruth Hatton 
Deputy Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8019 

 
 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Introduction, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest   

2. Instruments that raise issues to be reported to the Assembly 
under Standing Order 21.2 or 21.3   

Affirmative Resolution Instruments 

 
CLA198 - The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements 
(Wales) Regulations 2012  (Pages 1 - 5) 
Item 2.1 
 

CLA198 The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements 
(Wales) Regulations 2012 
 Affirmative Procedure. Date made not stated Date laid not stated. Coming into 
force not stated 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 1- Legal Advisers Report 
 
 

 
 

 
CLA197 - The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) 
Regulations 2012  (Pages 6 - 9) 
Item 2.2 
 

Public Document Pack



CLA197 - The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) 
Regulations 2012 
Affirmative Procedure. Date made not stated Date laid not stated. Coming into 
force date not stated. 

 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 2 – Legal Advisers Report 
 

 
 

 
Additional Papers to note  (Pages 10 - 19) 
Papers: 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 3 – Letter to Chair from Minister for Local Government and 
Communities, 5 November 2012. 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 4 – Letter from Chair to Minister for Local Government and 
Communities, 9 November 2012 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 5 – Letter from Finance Minister and Leader of the House, 12 
December 2012 
 
CLA(4)-27-12 Paper 6 – Welsh Government Note for the Constitutional and 
Legislative Affairs Committee 
 

Transcript 
View the meeting transcript.  



1 

 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Draft Report 

 

 

Title: The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements 

(Wales) Regulations 2012  

 

These Regulations set out the practical framework within which council tax 

reduction schemes will operate in Wales after the abolition of the current 

council tax benefit system. These Regulations make provision for local 

authorities to adopt council tax reduction schemes which incorporate a 

limited range of discretionary elements to provide support for council tax.  

 

In line with the provisions in the Local Government Finance Act 2012 (the 

Act) which amend the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council Tax 

Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2012 

(“the prescribed requirements regulations”) and the Council Tax Reduction 

Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 (“the default scheme 

regulations”) will govern the introduction and operation of council tax 

reduction schemes in Wales. 

 

Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (“the 1992 Act”), 

substituted by section 9 of the Local Government Finance Act 2012, enables 

the Welsh  Ministers to make regulations in connection with council tax 

reduction schemes. These Regulations require each billing authority in Wales 

to make a scheme specifying the reductions which are to apply to amounts 

of council tax payable by persons, or classes of person, considered to be in 

financial need. Paragraphs 2 to 7 of Schedule 1B to the 1992 Act enable the 

Welsh Ministers to prescribe by regulations, matters that must be included in 

a scheme together with additional requirements which must or must not be 

included in a scheme.  

 

Part 1 of these Regulations contains introductory provisions and definitions 

of key words and phrases.  Part 2 makes provision about scheme 

requirements in relation to billing authorities in Wales, including classes of 

persons, reductions and scheme procedural requirements. Part 3 prescribes 

classes of person who must be included in an authority’s scheme. Part 4 

prescribes classes of person who must not be included in an authority’s 

scheme. 

 

Part 5 and Schedules 1 to 5 prescribe the matters that must be included in 

an authority’s scheme in relation to pensioners. Schedules 1 to 5 set out the 

rules relevant to determine the eligibility of pensioners for a reduction and 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 1



2 

 

the amount of reduction under a scheme, and set out how income and 

capital of pensioners is to be treated in calculating eligibility for a reduction. 

 

Part 5 and Schedules 6 to 10 prescribe the matters that must be included in 

an authority’s scheme in relation to persons who are not pensioners. 

Schedules 6 to 10 set out the rules relevant to determine the eligibility of 

non-pensioners for a reduction and the amount of reduction under a 

scheme, and set out how income and capital of non-pensioners is to be 

treated in calculating eligibility for a reduction, including in cases where a 

non-pensioner or partner has an award of universal credit. 

 

Schedule 11 provides for the application of the scheme to students. 

 

Part 5 and Schedules 12 to 14 contain matters that must be included in an 

authority’s scheme in respect of all applicants. 

 

Procedure:  Affirmative 

 

Technical Scrutiny  

 

Under Standing Order 21.2 the Assembly is invited to pay special attention 

to the following instrument:- 

 

1. These Regulations have not been made bilingually. 

 

[Standing Order 21.2(ix) – that it is not made or to be made in both English 

and Welsh]. 

 

Paragraph 5 of the Explanatory memorandum gives an explanation as to why 

these Regulations have not been made bilingually: 

 

“Because of the length and technical complexity of the regulations, the 

timeframes within which they have been compiled and the fact that they 

draw on council tax benefit regulations for which there is no existing 

translation, it has not been possible to arrange for the Regulations to be 

provided in Welsh.” 

 

2. On pages 96 and 97, (Schedule 6, Paragraph 19) references are made 

to regulations 75(1)(a)(ii), 75(1)(a)(iv) and 75(1)(b)(ii) of the Jobseeker’s 

Allowance Regulations 1996. In fact these references should be to 75(1)(a) 

and 75(1)(b) instead. 

 

Page 2



3 

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements] 

 

3. This reporting point is the same as the above but it occurs in a  

different part of the text. On page 109 (Schedule 6, paragraph 30)  

reference is made to regulation 75(1)(a)(ii), 75(1)(a)(iv) and 75(1)(b)(ii) of  

the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations 1996. In fact these references should  

be to 75(1)(a) and 75(1)(b) instead. 

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements]. 

 

4. On page 134 (Schedule 8, paragraph 18(c)) reference is made to 

regulation 18(3) of the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum Rate) 

Regulations 2002. This provision has in fact been repealed by regulation 

2(19) of the Tax Credits (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2012. 

This provision allowed claimants to a further benefit/reduction in Council 

Tax.  

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements]. 

 

  

Merits Scrutiny  

Under Standing Order 21.3 the Assembly is invited to pay special attention 

to the following instrument:- 

 

1. Two sets of Council Tax regulations have been laid for approval, the 

prescribed requirement regulations and the default scheme 

regulations. The prescribed requirement regulations make provision 

for requirements for local schemes to be made by individual local 

authorities in Wales, as well as specifying a number of areas of local 

discretion. The default scheme regulations will take effect if local 

authorities choose not to adopt their own schemes or they do not 

adopt schemes within the required time.  

 

If local authorities wish to adopt their own schemes under the 

prescribed requirements regulations, then regulation 13 states “each 

authority in Wales must make a scheme no later than the 31st January 

2013, and the first financial year to which that scheme relates must 

be the year beginning 1 April 2013”. Unless Local Authorities have 

already begun preparations of their own for the schemes then they 

only have a very limited period of time to adopt their own schemes. 

Page 3



4 

 

The type of changes and work required that is envisaged for Local 

Authorities to adopt their own schemes is identified on pages 12 and 

13 of the Explanatory Memorandum which contains a table setting out 

the estimated costs for moving from the existing council tax benefit 

system to a new scheme (transition costs). Examples include 

alterations to each local authority’s IT system, modelling new software, 

training of staff and publicising the new schemes via a range of media 

channels. 

 

2. Both sets of regulations were re-tabled on 12th December 2012. The 

substantive amendment to the prescribed requirements regulations 

was that a “sun-set” clause was inserted in to regulation 1. Regulation 

1(3) states “These Regulations apply in relation to the financial year 

beginning on 1 April 2013.” This limits the application of these 

Regulations and they will cease to have effect on midnight on 31st 

March 2014.  Regulation 1(4) states “On or before 1 January 2014 the 

Welsh Ministers must publish draft regulations under section 13A(4) of 

the 1992 Act in respect of the financial year beginning 1 April 2014 

and subsequent financial years.”  This means that the prescribed 

requirements regulations will be redrafted and published by or before 

the first of January next year. This will give the Assembly the 

opportunity to re-visit and scrutinise in good time any future draft 

prescribed requirements regulations. The explanatory memorandum 

has been amended to reflect the above changes (paragraphs 6, 7 and 

8). 

 

No amendments have been made to the Council Tax Reduction 

Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 as none were 

required. The effect of paragraph 6(1)(e) of Schedule 1B to the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 is that any default scheme prescribed in 

regulations will only apply in the event that a local authority fails to 

comply with any duty set out in regulations requiring authorities to 

introduce council tax reduction schemes. The Council Tax Reduction 

Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 therefore have 

practical effect only during the period of the applicability of the 

prescribed requirements regulations which impose the duty to have a 

scheme, which by virtue of regulation 1(3) of those regulations is 

the financial year 2013-14.  

 

3. The Regulatory Impact Assessment outlines the various options and 

possible outcomes of making these Regulations. Page 11 of the 

Explanatory Memorandum explains there is a funding shortfall from 

HM Treasury which means that from now on, persons claiming support 

Page 4



5 

 

under the council tax reduction scheme will have to pay a proportion 

of their own council tax bill. The Explanatory Memorandum states that 

“due to the funding available, the new scheme will mean that 

approximately 70% of current Council Tax Benefits (CTB) claimants in 

Wales will have to pay council tax for the first time and as a result 

local authorities are expecting that their council tax collection rates 

could fall and the costs of collecting this additional council tax could 

rise”. It is estimated that collection rates are expected to fall up to 

1.5%. 

 

 

  

Legal Advisers 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 

December 2012 

 

Government response to follow 

Page 5



1 

 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Draft Report 

CLA 

 

Title: The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) 

Regulations 2012  

 

These Regulations made under the Local Government Act 1992 (‘the 1992 

Act’) detail the default scheme that will take effect if any local authority in 

Wales fails to adopt its own council tax reduction scheme under the Council 

Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (Wales) Regulations 2012 

(‘the Prescribed Requirements Regulations’) by 31 January 2013. 

 

These Regulations therefore have practical effect only during the period of 

the applicability of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations which impose 

the duty to have a scheme which by virtue of regulation 1(3) of those 

Regulations is the financial year 2013-14. 

 

The default scheme prescribed by the Welsh Ministers is set out in the 

Schedule to these Regulations.  Parts 1 and 2 contain introductory provisions 

and definitions of key words and phrases.  

 

Part 3 and Schedule 1 contain the procedure for reduction applications and 

appeals. Parts 4 and 5 specify the classes of person entitled and not entitled 

to a reduction under the scheme, respectively.  

 

Parts 6 to 8 and Schedules 2 and 3 set out matters relevant to determining 

eligibility for a reduction and the amount of reduction under the scheme.  

 

Part 9 and Schedules 4 to 9 set out how income and capital of the applicant 

and others is treated in calculating eligibility for a reduction, including in 

cases where an applicant or partner has an award of universal credit.  

 

Part 10 provides for the application of the scheme to students. Part 11 

provides for extended reductions in certain circumstances and Part 12 sets 

out the period of entitlement and how a change in circumstances affects any 

reduction.  

 

Part 13 of the scheme provides for the making of an application for a 

reduction. Part 14 sets out the time within which an authority must make its 

decision on the application and provides for notification of the decision. Part 

15 makes provision about the award or payment 

 

 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 6



2 

 

Procedure:  Affirmative 

 

Technical Scrutiny  

 

Under Standing Order 21.2 the Assembly is invited to pay special attention 

to the following instrument:- 

 

1. These Regulations have not been made bilingually. 

 

[Standing Order 21.2(ix) – that it is not made or to be made in both English 

and Welsh]. 

 

Paragraph 4 of the Explanatory Memorandum gives an explanation as to why 

these Regulations have not been made bilingually: 

 

“Because of the length and technical complexity of the regulations, the 

timeframes within which they have been compiled and the fact that they 

draw on council tax benefit regulations for which there is no existing 

translation, it has not been possible to arrange for the Regulations to be 

provided in Welsh.” 

 

2.  On Page 52, Chapter 5, Paragraph 53 4 (c) of the Scheme set out in the 

Schedule to these Regulations reference is made to regulation 75 (1)(a) (ii), 

75 (1) (a)(iv) and 75 (1)(b) (ii) of the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations 1996. 

In fact these references should be to 75 (1)(a) and 75(1)(b) instead. 

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements] 

 

3. This reporting point is the same as the above but it occurs in the  

different part of the text. On pages 65, 66 Chapter 7, Paragraph 6 (b)  

reference is made to regulation 75 (1)(a)(ii), 75 (1)(a)(iv) and 75 (1)(b)(ii) of  

the Jobseeker’s Allowance Regulations 1996. In fact these references should  

be to 75 (1)(a) and 75 (1)(b) instead. 

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements]. 

 

4.   On page 133 (Schedule 6, paragraph 18 (c) to the Scheme reference is 

made to regulation 18(3) of the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and 

Maximum Rate) Regulations 2002. This provision has in fact been repealed 

by regulation 2(19) of the Tax Credits (Miscellaneous Amendments) 

Page 7



3 

 

Regulations 2012. This provision allowed claimants to a further 

benefit/reduction in Council Tax.  

 

[Standing Order 21.2 (vi) – that its drafting appears to be defective or it fails 

to fulfil statutory requirements]. 

 

 

Merits Scrutiny  

Under Standing Order 21.3 the Assembly is invited to pay special attention 

to the following instrument:- 

 

1. Two sets of Council Tax regulations have been laid for approval, the 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations and the default scheme 

regulations. The Prescribed Requirements Regulations make provision 

for requirements for local schemes to be made by individual local 

authorities in Wales, as well as specifying a number of areas of local 

discretion. The default scheme regulations will take effect if local 

authorities choose not to adopt their own schemes or they do not 

adopt schemes within the required time.  

 

If local authorities wish to adopt their own schemes under the 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations then regulation 13 states “each 

authority in Wales must make a scheme no later than the 31st January 

2013, and the first financial year to which that scheme relates must 

be the year beginning 1 April 2013”. Unless Local Authorities have 

already begun preparations of their own for the schemes then they 

only have a very limited period of time to adopt their own schemes. 

The type of changes and work required that is envisaged for Local 

Authorities to adopt their own schemes is identified on page 12 and 

13 of the Explanatory Memorandum of the Prescribed Requirements 

Regulations which contains a table setting out the estimated costs for 

moving from the existing council tax benefit system to a new scheme 

(transition costs). Examples include alterations to each local 

authority’s IT system, modelling new software, training of staff and 

publicising the new schemes via a range of media channels. 

 

2. Both sets of Regulations were re-tabled on 12th December 2012. The 

substantive amendment to the Prescribed Requirements Regulations 

was that a “sun-set” clause was inserted in to regulation 1. Regulation 

1(3) states “These Regulations apply in relation to the financial year 

beginning on 1 April 2013.” This limits the application of the 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations and they will cease to have effect 

on midnight on 31st March 2014.  Regulation 1(4) states “On or before 

Page 8



4 

 

1 January 2014 the Welsh Ministers must publish draft regulations 

under section 13A(4) of the 1992 Act in respect of the financial year 

beginning 1 April 2014 and subsequent financial years.”  This means 

that the Prescribed Requirements Regulations will be redrafted and 

published by or before the first of January next year. This will give the 

Assembly the opportunity to re-visit and scrutinise in good time the 

Prescribed Requirements Regulations in a years’ time. The explanatory 

memorandum of the Prescribed Requirements Regulations has been 

amended to reflect the above changes (paragraphs 6, 7 and 8). 

 

No amendments have been made to the Council Tax Reduction 

Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 as none were 

required. The effect of paragraph 6(1)(e) of Schedule 1B to the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 is that any default scheme prescribed in 

regulations will only apply in the event that a local authority fails to 

comply with any duty set out in regulations requiring authorities to 

introduce council tax reduction schemes. The Council Tax Reduction 

Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 therefore have 

practical effect only during the period of the applicability of the 

Prescribed Requirements regulations which imposes the duty to have a 

scheme, which by virtue of regulation 1(3) of those regulations is 

the financial year 2013-14.  

 

3. The Regulatory Impact Assessment outlines the various options and 

possible outcomes of making the Prescribed Requirements 

Regulations. Page 11 of the Explanatory Memorandum explains there 

is a funding shortfall from HM Treasury which means that from now 

on, persons claiming support under the council tax reduction scheme 

will have to pay a proportion of their own council tax bill. The 

Explanatory Memorandum states that “due to the funding available, 

the new scheme will mean that approximately 70% of current Council 

Tax Benefits (CTB) claimants in Wales will have to pay council tax for 

the first time and as a result local authorities are expecting that their 

council tax collection rates could fall and the costs of collecting this 

additional council tax could rise”. It is estimated that collection rates 

are expected to fall up to 1.5%. 

 

Legal Advisers 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 

December 2012 

 

Government response to follow 

Page 9



Agenda Item 2.3

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



 

Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 

Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Ffôn / Tel: 029 2089 8154       
E-bost / Email: olga.lewis@wales.gov.uk 

 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh    

 

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 

  

 

 

 

Dear Carl  

 
 
The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) Wales Regulations  
and the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Wales 
Regulations   
 
 
Thank you for your letter of 5 November about the above Regulations.  
 
I appreciate the difficulties you face as you have outlined in your letter. We 
will always endeavour to work flexibly to assist the Welsh Government and, 
as such, to consider Statutory Instruments in a shorter period than the 20 
days set by standing orders (particularly where the instrument in question is 
short or we have considered it in draft). However, we must also balance this 
approach against our obligations to scrutinise legislation effectively and in an 
open and transparent way.   
 
I understand that each set of Regulations is some 200 pages long and, as you 
indicate in your letter, that they are complex in nature. Furthermore, it is not 
expected that the Regulations will be laid before the National Assembly until 
the 15 or 16 November.  
 
Regrettably, for these reasons, I cannot guarantee that the Committee will be 
in a position to consider and report on these Regulations within the 
timeframe proposed by your letter.   
 

Carl Sargeant AM 
Minister for Local Government and Communities    
Welsh Government 
5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 
 

9 November 2012 

Page 14



Nevertheless, please be assured that as soon as the Regulations are laid 
before the National Assembly, they will be reviewed and brought to the 
attention of the Committee as soon as possible.  
 
I am copying this letter to the Chair of the Communities, Equality and Local 
Government Committee.  
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 

David Melding AM 
Chair 

Page 15



Jane Hutt AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

                Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

Eich cyf/Your ref 
Ein cyf/Our ref 

All Assembly Members

Dear Colleague,

I am writing to inform you that I have today laid the amended Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2012. These Regulations and 
their Explanatory Memoranda are available on the Documents Laid page of the National 
Assembly for Wales’ website at http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-
fourth-assembly-laid-docs.htm.

The amendments that have been made to the Council Tax Reduction Schemes and 
Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2012 from those that were laid on                 
5 December 2012 are set out below:-

§ 1(3)These Regulations apply in relation to the financial year beginning on 1 April 2013. 

§ 1(4) On or before 1 January 2014 the Welsh Ministers must publish draft regulations 
under section 13A(4) of the 1992 Act in respect of the financial year beginning 1 April 
2014 and subsequent financial years.

The practical effect of the sunset clause in regulation 1(3), and the duty to publish a new set 
of draft regulations by 1 January 2014 in regulation 1(4), is to ensure that Welsh Ministers 
will bring forward subsequent regulations in good time, to enable full scrutiny of future 
schemes to take place in good time for their introduction.

The Explanatory Note to the Prescribed Requirements Regulations and the accompanying 
Explanatory Memorandum have also been revised to reflect these changes.

12 December 2012

Page 16



I have also re-laid the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales 
Regulations) Regulations 2012. No amendments have been made to these Regulations as 
none are required. The effect of paragraph 6(1)(e) of Schedule 1B to the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 is that any default scheme prescribed in regulations will only apply in the 
event that a local authority fails to comply with any duty set out in regulations requiring 
authorities to introduce council tax reduction schemes.  The Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 therefore have practical effect only 
during the period of the applicability of the Prescribed Requirements regulations which 
imposes the duty to have a scheme, which by virtue of regulation 1(3) of those regulations is 
the financial year 2013-14.

The Explanatory Note to the Default Scheme regulations has been updated to clarify this 
point and it is detailed further in the accompanying Explanatory Memorandum.

Jane Hutt AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House

Page 17



Please leave page blank for printing

Page 18



To:
From:

Ext 
Fax 

    Date:

[Ref]
CC:

[TYPE THE SUBJECT OF YOUR MINUTE HERE]

[Type the text of your minute here]

Page 19



Note for Constitutional & Legislative Affairs Committee 

1. This document provides an overview of the amendments that have been 
made to the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) 
Regulations 2012 and the Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed 
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2012 and their accompanying Explanatory 
Memoranda, following the amendments made to insert a sunset clause.

Amendments Made To the Prescribed Requirements Regulations
2. As a result of the First Minister’s request the following amendments have 

been made to the Prescribed Requirements regulations:

§ Insertion of Regulation 1(3) which limits the applicability of the regulations 
to the financial year 2013-14;

§ Insertion of Regulation 1(4) which places a duty on Welsh Ministers to 
publish a new draft set of regulations on or before 1 January 2014 that will 
make provision for subsequent financial years;

§ Revision of the Explanatory Note to refer to the new regulations

3. Paragraphs 6-8 have also been inserted to the Explanatory Memorandum 
explaining the purpose and intended effect of Regulation 1(3) and 1(4)

4. As a result of making amendments to limit the applicability of the regulations 
to one financial year it has been necessary to make the following minor 
amendments to the regulations:

§ Minor amendment to regulation 13 to specify that the financial year to 
which the scheme made under the regulations is to relate, is to be the 
financial year beginning on 1st April 2013.

§ Deletion of regulation 17 which relates to a duty to review schemes on an 
annual basis and amend/replace schemes if necessary. As the regulations 
are to be limited to one year, this regulation is no longer appropriate.

Amendments Made to the Default Scheme Regulations
5. No amendments have been made to the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 

(Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012 as none are required. 

6. By virtue of paragraph 6(1)(e) of Schedule 1B to the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, a default scheme will only apply in the event that an 
authority fails to comply with any duty set out in regulations requiring an 
authority to introduce a council tax reduction scheme. Therefore, if the 
regulations requiring the introduction of a scheme are applied only for a 
limited time, as is the case in relation to the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 
and Prescribed Requirement (Regulations) 2012 (regulation 1(3)), then the 
default scheme regulations only have practical effect during that time. 

Page 20



7. To clarify this point a paragraph has been inserted into the Explanatory 
Memorandum for the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) 
(Wales) Regulations 2012 at paragraph 3:

8. The first paragraph of the Explanatory Note to the Default Scheme 
Regulations has also been amended to highlight this point. 

Equality Impact Assessment & Summary of Consultation Responses

9. When the Explanatory Memoranda were tabled on 5th December the Equality 
Impact Assessment and summary of consultation responses were provided 
as separate annexes and were accidentally not tabled alongside these 
documents. As a result they have been inserted into the Explanatory 
Memoranda and appear as annexes to the document – this has increased 
their length by approximately 70 pages.

Page 21


	Agenda
	2.1 CLA198 - The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2012
	2.2 CLA197 - The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2012
	2.3 Additional Papers to note
	CLA(4)-27-12(p4) - DM to CS re Council Tax Regulations
	CLA(4)-27-12(p5) - 2012 12 12 Letter FLH Minister to AMs Council Tax Regs En
	CLA(4)-27-12(p6) - Welsh Government Note for the Constitutional Legislative Affairs Committee


